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Key details

Addresses At 111 Ives Street, Murarrie, Queensland 4172

Type of place School

Period Victorian 1860-1890

Style Carpenter Gothic

Lot plan L178_RP12877; L179_RP12877

Key dates Local Heritage Place Since — 17 May 2013
Date of Citation — May 2013

Criterion for listing (A) Historical

The modest timber building was established as a Sunday school at a time when Murarrie’s industry was growing
and many of its workers established homes in the suburb. Originally, the building was the teacher’s residence at
the Waterford State School (constructed 1873-74). In 1929 the timber building was acquired by the Murarrie
community and moved to its present site. A series of alterations and improvements were made and the non-
denominational Sunday school served the community until 1982 when church services began that continue to
serve the community.

History 

In the late nineteenth century the suburb of Murarrie was a rural outpost, with large farms and limited
transportation into and out of the area. With the coming of the railway line to Cleveland in 1889, Murarrie became
more accessible and suburban development slowly escalated with increased land subdivision and sale. 

From as early as the 1880s, Murarrie became an industrial area. Several meatworks, saleyards, a bacon factory,
brick works, and the Powerhouse were located in the suburb by the early twentieth century. Many of the
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employees in these industries settled close to their work and a small village emerged beside the railway station
by the interwar period.

In 1927 Frederick Blythe Turner-Jones purchased a thirty-two perch block of land on Ives Street, Murarrie. Prior
to this the land had been part of a sixty- two acre holding that was subdivided from 1892 by The Queensland
Deposit Bank and Building Society. Turner-Jones may have bought the land as an investment as he resided
elsewhere in this period. 

In 1930 the block of land was transferred to the Queensland Stewards’ Company. This company was first
established in 1913 as a non-commercial venture. The use of the term ‘Steward’ dates back to a seventeenth-
century interpretation of the word in the King James Bible. A ‘steward’ was referred to as one who managed
certain affairs on behalf of someone in a higher position. The Stewards’ Company, therefore, was established to
act in a ‘caretaker’ role for the safe keeping of important documents such as Title Deeds for local churches that
were not Incorporated. It was stated in the Brisbane Courier in 1913 that:

the objects for which the Company is proposed to be formed are for the purpose of promoting,
promulgating, teaching, and practising, and in making and assisting thereof of the doctrines and
precepts as in the Memorandum of Association as set forth, most surely believed, taught, and
practised amongst a body of Christian Believers who adopt no sectarian name, but simply call
themselves Christians…   
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The small timber Sunday school was not constructed on the site. In late 1929 the teacher’s residence from the
Waterford State School was acquired by the church community and relocated to the site. Murarrie resident,
David Barclay was assisted by carpenter, Gordon Rhoades, to re-establish the building on its present site. The
original teacher’s residence was constructed in 1873-74, as evidenced in a Tender Notice from September of
that year for “the Erection of Teacher’s Residence at Waterford Primary School, in accordance with plan
specification”  From 1929 there was a series of Tender Notices issued for the removal of the teacher’s
residence from the Waterford State School; the successful Tender being from G.W Rhoades.
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In May 1933 the Queensland Stewards’ Company was recorded in the Brisbane City Council’s building register
applying to make additions to a ‘church’ at Murarrie. This record suggests that there was an ecclesiastical
building on the site between the time the religious group acquired the land in 1930 and before this application
was received in 1933. 

The congregation at the Murarrie Sunday school was non-denominational and served the community as such
until 1982 when the property was given to the Wynnum Gospel Hall Assemblies. Since then the building has
been used for non-denominational church services. Now known as the Murarrie Community Church, the
ownership of the building was transferred to that congregation in 2006 and continues to be a centre for religious
worship in the Murarrie area.  

Statement of significance 

Relevant assessment criteria

This is a place of local heritage significance and meets one or more of the local heritage criteria under the
Heritage planning scheme policy of the Brisbane City Plan 2014.
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It is significant because:

Historical
CRITERION A

The place is important in demonstrating the evolution or pattern of the city's or local area’s history

as a Sunday school established in the interwar period, it reflects the community's spiritual needs at a time when
the Murarrie area was becoming increasingly populated due to the growth of local industry.
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Copyright Brisbane City Council

Note: This citation has been prepared on the basis of evidence available at the time including an external
examination of the building. The statement of significance is a summary of the most culturally important aspects
of the property based on the available evidence, and may be re-assessed if further information becomes
available. The purpose of this citation is to provide an informed evaluation for heritage registration and
information. This does not negate the necessity for a thorough conservation study by a qualified practitioner,
before any action is taken which may affect its heritage significance.

Citation prepared by — Brisbane City Council (page revised June 2022)
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